EQUALITIES PANEL

PRESENT

Independent Chair: Andy Yacoub, Diversity Manager, Suffolk County Council

Councillors: Hughes, Lynn, Slatter

Staff Members: Graham Watts, Norah Al-Ani

Public Members: Graham Lewis

Presenting papers: Sigrid Fisher, Strategy Officer (Equalities) & Jackie Condon, Head of Human Resources (HoHR)

In attendance: Antoinette Jackson, Head of Strategy & Partnerships (HoSP), a representative of the Council's LGBT Group for Item 3, Martin Doyle of Cambridgeshire County Council Registry

1 WELCOME TO NEW MEMBERS/APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

The Chair introduced himself and then invited members to introduce themselves to Councillor Miriam Lynn, a new member of the Panel, appointed on 25 May. Cllr Elizabeth Hughes had been re-appointed after a year's absence, Cllr Victoria Bruce had also been appointed.

Apologies were received from Gerri Bird, Nicky Wrigley, Cllr Bruce, Bridget Keady, Ila Chandavarkar and Nacer Dali.

2 MINUTES & MATTERS ARISING

The minutes of the meeting held on 14 November 2005 were approved.

Re Item 3: (i) Holocaust Memorial Day – Norah Al-Ani reported that two schools had been involved in events to mark this Day. The Panel noted that the 2007 programme would be broader to include other groups persecuted at that time. (ii) Travellers Group: Antionette Jackson had provided Councillor Downham with the list of members on this Group.

Re Item 5: Choice Based Lettings – noted that this was not due to roll out SF until late 2008 and the Panel would receive a report back after the system had been in place for a period.

Re Item 6: (i) Chair of Strategy Scrutiny – AJ advised that the Chair of the SF Strategy Scrutiny Committee does not have to a member of the Panel. (ii) Mission Statement - to be circulated to the Panel.

FEEDBACK FROM THE INFORMAL MEETING: 28 APRIL

The following update on actions since the meeting:

2 – Knowledge and skills audit of Panel members

Bridget Keady (BK) had sent everyone the Asylum Seekers and Refugee research. The Chair had asked if the information could be passed to others but the Police did not agree that this should be done because some of the information was confidential, so a revised document for wider distribution would be made available to pass on. BK to send the information to the new BK Cllrs on the Panel.

SF to provide the Panel with Newcastle City Council's flexible working SF scheme.

SF to consider further when the next knowledge and skills audit of the Panel should be undertaken.

3 – Diversity Review

The email group (<u>equality@cambridge.gov.uk</u>) had been corrected and the Panel, except for new councillors appointed in May had their email addresses added to the email group. New Councillors to be added to the group.

Panel to be sent the Report to Strategy Scrutiny Committee (10 July)

SF

SF

BK

3 SEXUAL ORIENTATION & 2011 CENSUS

The Chair advised the Panel that officers from across the region had met with Office for National Statistics (ONS) to discuss the inclusion of hard to reach groups. Pilot questions were to be tested in certain regions next year, but sexual orientation was not to be included.

A representative of the Council's LGBT Group was present at the meeting, and fed back that the Group's views were

- It is likely that one family member completes the census and therefore sexuality may not be accurately represented.
- Sexuality was too complex to be surveyed by census.
- While the ONS document (March 2006) gave strong arguments for information to be gathered on sexuality, the challenge was how to do this

The Panel felt that if ONS did not include a question in the next census on sexual orientation, there was a need to find alternative ways of capturing this data. In the absence of any appropriate alternative it may be that including a question in the census is the only viable option for now. The Panel thought that a response should be sent to the ONS and the representative of LGBT undertook to draft a letter for circulation and comment.

The Panel thanked the LGBT Group for its contributions to this debate and the representative for attending. It was agreed that the Group representative would draft a response to ONS and forward this to SF who would circulate it to Panel members for comment before sending it off on behalf of the Panel.

LGBT Group rep

Presentation on Civil Partnerships.

Martin Doyle, from Cambridgeshire County Council Registry Service talked about civil partnerships in the County.

The information on how the service was developing and being used regionally was welcomed by the Panel, as were issues raised about staff training needs in relation to this new legislation. The Panel expressed a commitment to ensuring within Cambridge City Council that all staff are offered training and support to adapt to such legislation positively both in terms of service delivery/customer care, and organisational culture.

4 DRAFT EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY REVIEW 2006

Regarding the Programme attached, Cllr Slatter asked for Mark Taylor's SF name be added to 4c), and for the document to include reference to Shopmobility Service.

There was discussion on difficulty getting appropriate representative candidates for political parties on the City Council. Although the City Council produced a leaflet for those interested in standing for election, the view was that it was a matter for the political parties (locally and nationally). AJ suggested that the Director of Central Services could be invited to a future meeting to discuss this issue.

Cllr Slatter mentioned the date had been set for the Way to Be Awards – 23rd All to November at the Corn Exchange.

Panel to advise SF on any events/items listed that they wish to involved with. All to

All to note

The Panel supported the actions to address in the future as listed in the report.

5 DIVERSITY IN EMPLOYMENT - PROGRESS REPORT

In response to a question from Graham Lewis, Jackie Condon advised the Panel that it was the intention to keep the HR Diversity post funded to March 2007. A Best Value Review of the Council's Human Resources Service was being undertaken. Diversity issues would be addressed as part of that Review, due to report to Customer Services & Resources Scrutiny Committee on 14th November.

The Panel requested a summary of the data collected from the staff sexual JC orientation survey undertaken in autumn 2005 be distributed

HR to inform Panel of how Council responds to transgender issues and JC whether information was available on the intranet.

6 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Monday 27th November 2006, 4-6pm.

Browns Field Community Centre

EQUALITIES PANEL 27th November 2006

MATTERS ARISING

Item 2 / 2 : SF actions

Newcastle City Council information circulated with 27.11.06 meeting papers.

Recommendation that next knowledge and skills audit be undertaken by new Independent Chair.

Item 3

Letter drafted and checked by Interim Chair of Panel, and sent to ONS. No response received. Further information about Census consultation from ONS has been circulated to Panel members.

Item 4

Encouragement of Political Parties to Improve Representation within Candidates' Selection of Minority or Disadvantaged Groups

Members' Services produces a booklet "Would you like to be a City Councillor?" This is revised every year, and contains all of the basic information, from the perspective of Cambridge City Council, from which any member of the public would benefit in considering whether to stand for election. This booklet was distributed at the Annual General Meeting of the Black and Minority Ethnic Community Forum. The up-take of this and the interest in it was greater than in previous years.

Members' Services participated again this year in the national "Local Democracy Week" initiatives from the Local Government Association. We held an "Open Day" at the Guildhall, and we staffed a publicity stand in the corridor of the Lion Yard Shopping Centre. As well as placing notices in all of our usual, public, media, information out-lets, a dedicated information email was issued, and our Black and Minority Ethnic Groups' contacts were specifically included in the distribution of this.

Following advice from a party agent, our annual Prospective Candidates' Briefing was moved from being held in February to being held in November. The principal means which we used to advertise this was an email both to present Members of the Council and to Party Agents. A public notice was issued to all of our usual, media, information, out-lets, and, again, this information was forwarded to the Black and Minority Ethnic Groups' contacts.

A supply of our "Would you like to be a City Councillor?" booklet was provided, for display and for distribution, at the recent Pink Picnic.

"Speaking Up" is a voluntary organisation which enables people who experience learning difficulties, mental ill health or other disabilities to find their voice and shape their own lives. It creates positive choices for disabled people, by helping organisations to understand their needs and representing their views or supporting them to speak up for themselves, and it leads society towards recognising disabled people as equal and valued citizens with the same choices and opportunities as everyone else. Towards the end of the last calendar year, Members' Services hosted a group from the local branch of "Speaking Up" for half a day. With his back-ground in education and teaching, the Mayor at the time, Councillor John Hipkin, made a significant contribution to hosting these guests.

FLEXIBLE WORK SCHEME negotiated at Newcastle City Council (copy)

1 Introduction

- 1.1 The flexible working hours scheme seeks to maximise flexibility of working time to provide for both business and employee needs. Nevertheless work locations must at all times be efficient and services to all customers must be maintained: this requirement is paramount. Employees are responsible for ensuring the necessary work is done when required not necessarily at a time that suits the employee.
- 1.2 Office opening hours vary location to location and are independent of the flexible hours scheme. Building, work availability and technology constraints mean that full bandwidth flexibility will not be available in all locations. All employees on the flexible working hours scheme as at 15 December 2003 will transfer to this scheme. Other groups may join subject to local agreement.
- 1.3 To ensure that services are available to customers and that, so far as is practicable, employees are treated equitably, the right is reserved to operate rosters and to regulate starting and finishing times (including lunch breaks).
- 1.4 The normal working week for full time employees is 37 hours, Monday to Friday. The accounting period is 4 weeks and staff are contracted to work 148 hours per accounting period within a flexible band 133 hours to 185 hours.
- 1.5 So far as is practical all employees will use the networked Zeus time recording system. Where this is not available time clocks or manual recording will be used. Regular reports on employee attendance will be provided to managers for monitoring purposes. In matters of dispute or discipline these will be available to employees and their representatives.
- 1.6 Employees who abuse the scheme will be subject to disciplinary action under the Council's Disciplinary Procedure. Sanctions may include:
 - a) withdrawal of the right to work flexibly, ie work standard defined hours
 - b) for a fixed period not exceeding 12 months, and/or
 - c) a written warning, or
 - d) in the most serious cases, dismissal.

Swiping another employee in or out, or allowing this to happen, is an act of gross-misconduct which may result in dismissal without notice.

2 Flexible Working Day

- 2.1 Subject to the constraints described in 1.2 and 1.3 above all employees may attend flexibly between 07.00 and 19.00. Where there is a business need Directors have discretion to extend the flexible day and also record attendances on Saturdays and Sundays.
- 2.2 During the flexible day employees may clock in and out at their discretion, ensuring always that defined levels of service or office cover are maintained. Employees must contact an appropriate person if they are unexpectedly prevented from returning to work once they are 'clocked out' so that services are not compromised.
- 2.3 Employees must clock out at the end of their working day. If they fail to do this they will receive no credit hours from their last clocking in unless they put through an authorised flexible working hours personal adjustment form.

3 Lunch Break

3.1 Employees working 6 hours or more (4.5 hours in the case of employees aged under 18 years) must take a minimum 30 minute break to comply with Working Time Regulations. This break may not be taken at the beginning or end of the working day. Breaks will be taken subject to the constraints in 1.2 and 1.3.

4 Credit and Debit Balances

4.1 A credit of up to a maximum of 37 hours, or debit of a maximum of 15 hours may be carried over from one accounting period to the next. At the end of the accounting period the total hours accumulated by each employee should fall between 133 hours and 185 hours (subject to any absences without pay). In the case of part-time employees a "pro rata" principle will apply. Part-time employees will therefore be allowed to carry forward the following debit and credit balances from one accounting period to the next:

Debits Credits

Employees working up to 15 hours per week6 hrs15 hrsEmployees working more than 15 and up to 20 hours per week8 hrs20 hrsEmployees working more than 20 and up to 25 hours per week10 hrs25 hrsEmployees working more than 25 and up to 30 hours per week12 hrs30 hrsEmployees working more than 30 and up to 35 hours per week14 hrs35 hrsEmployees working more than 35 hours per week15 hrs37 hrs

4.2 A credit balance which exceeds 37 hours at the end of the accounting period will be discounted.

4.3 An employee who accumulates a debit balance in excess of 15 hours at the end of the accounting period will be liable, unless there are exceptional agreed circumstances, to a deduction from pay, equivalent to the excess. In the case of part time employees a "pro rata" principle will apply. Disciplinary action may be taken against an employee who continually exceeds the maximum debit hours they are allowed.

4.4 The only exception to the limit in 4.3 above will be employees who are unable to achieve a balance at the end of an accounting period because of sickness or other unexpected absence. In such cases the debit hours will be carried forward until their return, with management discretion over how quickly each individual should achieve a balance after his/her return.

4.5 An employee leaving the Council must try to achieve a balance. No monetary credit will be made for credit hours remaining. The Council will make the appropriate cash debit for debit hours outstanding.

5 Flexible Leave

5.1 Employees' entitlement to flexi leave is limited to the following per 4 week accounting period: 1 day flexi leave for employees who usually attend for work for up to 3 days per week 2 days flexi leave for employees who usually attend for work for more than 3 days per week However, in emergencies (and by agreement in advance) on one occasion within a 4 week accounting period, an employee may take extra flexi hours to enable them to take up to a normal working week off. Such extra flexi days off are subject to not breaching the 15 hours or pro rata debit boundary and will be treated as anticipating flexi leave from subsequent acounting periods. Therefore an employee who takes extra flexi days off will not be able to take any further flexi leave until these anticipated days have been "paid back".

5.2 Approval to take "flexible" leave should be sought as soon as possible but will be dictated by service requirements including, if necessary, late cancellation of approval.

5.3 "Flexible" leave may be taken in advance of hours worked, provided this does not place employees in a position of excess debit. Details of the excess debit limits are detailed in 4.1 above.

6 Lieu Time

6.1 Lieu time may be exchanged for flexi-credit provided the maximum carryover of 37 hours in any period is not exceeded. For part time employees the pro rata principle as outlined in 4.1 will apply. 6.2 Where lieu time is not exchanged for flexi-credit, it may only be used towards authorised absence in multiples of half days (ie 3 hours 42 minutes).

7 Annual Leave

7.1 Employees will be credited with the relevant annual leave entitlement on 1 April each year. Annual leave may be taken flexibly by agreement as half and full days with 3 hours 42 mins and 7 hours 24 mins credited to the flexi scheme as appropriate. To comply with Working Time Regulations, all employees must take a minimum of 4 weeks paid leave per year. Any Bank Holidays count towards this 4 week holiday period. The balance of annual leave may roll forward at the end of the leave year. At no time may an employee's rolling entitlement exceed twice the annual leave entitlement.

7.2 If any employee has been absent because of sickness for a whole year no entitlement may be rolled forward except that which may have been rolled forward at the start of the year.

7.3 Payment in lieu of annual holidays on termination of employment may only be made if the employee is unable to take all outstanding leave before their employment ends because:

i. they are not permitted to do so due to pressure of work or operational reasons, or

ii. they are absent on long term sickness up to the date their employment ends, or

iii. they are leaving on grounds of redundancy and their notice period is less than their outstanding leave entitlement.

8 Compressed Weeks and Fortnights

8.1 Full time employees may, subject to agreement, work "5 days over 4" or "10 days over 9" compressed weeks. These working patterns are variations of the flexi-scheme not a change to contractual hours. Employees working "5 over 4" and "10 over 9" will be entitled to 4 and 2 days flexi-leave respectively in each accounting period. Except as provided for in 5.1 no other flexi-leave may be taken irrespective of flexi-balances.

8.2 If an employee elects to work compressed weeks or fortnights they must commit themselves to the following terms:

8.2.1 To agree with the manager which day of the week they will be absent, observing individual and business needs and any impact on colleagues.

8.2.2 To observe the other flexible scheme guidelines.

8.2.3 To remain on this working pattern for at least 3 complete settlement periods, ie 12 weeks.

8.3 If employees require a credit or debit, the manager will not input more than 7 hours 24 minutes for a full day or 3 hours 42 minutes for a half day.

8.4 If employees are sick on their flexi day off, their manager will not input more than 7 hours and 24 minutes credit and record the sick absence as normal. If a pattern emerges that employees repeatedly certify themselves as sick on their flexi day their manager will address the issue.

8.5 When employees work compressed weeks they will have their annual leave allotted in days. Whenever an employee applies for a full week's leave, they can either take their normal non-attendance day as flexi provided they are within the normal flexi limits in which case 4 days leave will be deducted from their annual leave entitlement and a credit of 29 hours and 36 minutes given. Alternatively, they may take 5 days leave in which case 5 days leave will be deducted from their annual leave balance and a credit for 37 hours given.

8.6 Weeks already reduced to 4 days or less - due to Bank Holidays/staff training/ sickness etc - can mean an employee would not be able to take their flexi day off and stay within the debit limitations of the flexi time scheme. In these circumstances staff may only take their non-attendance day if the credit/ debit limitations are adhered to, in line with all other staff. If their normal day of non-attendance falls on a Bank Holiday, they are not obliged to take another day off in the week. Staff will get the relevant credit for the Bank Holiday in line with all other staff. If staff want to take another day off in that week they can, provided their manager agrees and they are within the flexi rules.

8.7 As this is a variation of the flexi scheme, if employees work 5 over 4 days or 10 over 9 days the flexi time system will remain programmed for a 7 hour 24 minute day. The non-working day is a flexi day. By the end of the week or fortnight the flexi balance will be correct.

9 Overtime

9.1 Overtime will not be worked unless prior authorisation has been obtained from a Director or Head of Service. In any event, approved overtime will only apply after an employee has worked more than a standard day, ie 7 hours 24 minutes.

9.2 Where employees are entitled to overtime payments, any approved overtime will be recorded separately from the flexible working record.

9.3 An employee may carry forward a debit of up to 15 hours but still have earned overtime. However, if an employee is in excess debit, ie of more than 15 hours, but has worked approved overtime, the appropriate number of overtime hours worked will be deducted in order to bring their debit to the stipulated limit of 15 hours before payment of the balance. In the case of part time employees a "pro rata" principle will apply.

10 Authorised Absence

10.1 Time off due to sickness, annual leave or other authorised absence with pay, will be credited to employees on the basis of standard working hours, ie 1 full day = 7 hours 24 minutes; 1 half day = 3 hours 42 minutes. Employees sent home ill during the course of the day will be credited with a balance up to standard working hours. Employees working less than 37 hours per week will be credited pro rata.

10.2 Absences for medical reasons involving visits to doctors, dentists, opticians etc are to be arranged during personal time. In the case of hospital appointments where appointment times are fixed and outside the control of individuals, a credit for the duration of the appointment will be given to a maximum of 3 hours 42 minutes. Where it is impractical to combine hospital consultations/day treatment with attendance at work, credit up to the standard day will be given.

10.3 Absence due to working away or at conferences or courses will normally be credited with the standard 7 hours 24 minutes. Additional time, within the limits of the band width, may be credited when the absence is related to business, and specifically to the performance of the essential duties of the postholder. Post entry training will not qualify for extra credit. Employees on full day release will receive 7 hours 24 minutes credit; those on half day release will be credited with 3 hours 42 minutes.

11 Travel and Weather

11.1 Employees will accept the normal risks of travel to and from work. Anyone unable to report to work because of severe weather or industrial action will only be credited in exceptional circumstances, and then on the basis of a corporate management decision.